POSTPONEMENT REQUEST #1 - PROD.03.19.09.F.06186.LNP_V61
EMAIL

From: Johnson, Bonnie J. [mailto:bjjohnson@integratelecom.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, March 25, 2009 1:00 PM
To: 'cmpesc@qwest.com'
Cc: Isaacs, Kimberly D.; Roberson, Laurie; Johnson, Bonnie J.; Redman-Carter, Julia A.; 'loriann.burke@xo.com'; Pedersen, Shelly; Torrez, Nora; Bloemke, Brenda
Subject: Integra and affiliates ("Integra"), tw telecom inc., McLeodUSATelecommunications Services, Inc (d/b/a) PAETEC Business Services, XOCommunications and Comcast/POSTPONEMENT/CR #PC012009-1/PROD.03.19.09.F.06186.LNP_V61_
CLECs jointly submit the following request for postponement. I am also attaching the request in a WORD document for your convenience. 

ATTACHMENT

Integra and affiliates ("Integra"), tw telecom inc., McLeodUSA Telecommunications Services, Inc (d/b/a) PAETEC Business Services, XO Communications and Comcast jointly submit this request for postponement of the Qwest initiated changes Qwest sent in its 3/19/09 PROD.03.19.09.F.06186.LNP_V61_ notice.  

· The basis for the request for a postponement;

The current process that was adopted 12 years ago by the industry for a customer to cancel a pending conversion to a new local service provider (NLSP) is for the customer to contact the NLSP. If the customer contacted the old local service provider (OSLP) then the OLSP would refer them to the NLSP to cancel the change in local service providers. 

Qwest is changing that current process that has been accepted industry wide for over 12 years. Qwest asserts its only reason for its proposed process is to be consistent with the cancelation flow contained in the Inter-Service Provider LNP Operations Flow – Narratives (“LNP Flow”). 

(See http://www.npac.com/cmas/co_docs/NANC_Ops_Flow_Narratives_v3.0.doc). 

The LNP Flow was developed in 1997 in the early stages of telecommunications evolution.  Also, these flows are not exact reflections of the current Industry cancelation practices governed by Industry Numbering Committee (INC) of the Alliance for Telecommunications Industry Solutions (ATIS) and practiced by all LECs except one CLEC, as purported by Qwest. 

Because there has been no change of law or industry practice, CLECs do not agree that a change in process is required at all and that the current process adopted by the industry over 12 years ago meets industry needs and protects the customer from harm. However, even if Qwest had a valid basis for implementing a process based on the current LNP Flow, CLECs do not agree with Qwest’s interpretation of the cancelation LNP Flow or that Qwest’s proposed process accurately reflects the LNP Flow. As a result of discussion in CMP regarding the interpretation of the LNP Flow, Qwest referred CLECs to the LNPA Working Group (“LNPA-WG”), which Qwest asserts as the controlling body for the industry  to request clarification and changes to the LNP Flow, even though Qwest and not CLECs, should have gone to the LNPA-WG for clarification and/or changes to the LNP Flow.  Any changes to a process that was adopted by the industry, implemented by the industry and has been working well for over 12 years should be proposed, reviewed and approved by the proper governing body prior to implementation. (If Qwest want to make industry changes, they should be approaching the INC and NANC with their proposals.)  Qwest should not be dictating changes to industry practices, and thus to NANC and INC, governing bodies.  Rather, NANC and INC approved changes to the industry practices should be the basis for which Qwest implements such changes. Furthermore, if the industry collectively had determined another process was reflected in the Flow that was not implemented, and then found it necessary to do so, the industry would have recognized that need and taken action long before now and that change should not be based on a need for Qwest to create a “marketing opportunity” for itself. 

Qwest claims it wants to implement this change "to be consistent with the industry flow as reflected in the LNP Flow charts." As described above, the LNP Flow chart on which Qwest bases its proposed process has been in existence since 1997. CLECs believe the current process is already consistent with the industry flow, has been working seamlessly for more than 12 years, and there has not been any incident or complaint justifying a significant process change as Qwest is proposing. Qwest said in the March 18th CMP meeting that the Qwest escalation group (CSIE) was getting calls asking to cancel the pending ports. Even upon query, Qwest did not indicate whether the calls were directly from the customer (in which case Qwest should deal with the OLSP for providing the CSIE contact information) or the OLSP. In any event, CLECs also receive those calls and per the process that has been in place for over 12 years, refer the customer to the NSLP to cancel their pending conversion. 

The basis for postponement is to allow NANC, the governing body for the industry practices, to review and consider Qwest’s proposed process, specifically noting the concerns, issues and questions raised by the CLECs regarding the process, and provide clarification to the concerns, issues and questions and determine if the proposed process is appropriate for implementation in the industry.

· The extent of the postponement requested, including the portions of the proposed change to be postponed and length of requested postponement;

Qwest and CLECs have confirmed with the LNPA-WG Co-chair that there are no meeting minutes or members of the team that can verify the intent of the flow narratives so we are left with the LNP Flow language itself. Qwest’s proposed process is in conflict with the “language itself” and Qwest has documented its own interpretation of that language within the processes the CLECs would be bound to follow. Although Qwest should have contacted the LNPA-WG prior to proposing such changes to this process, Qwest imposed on the CLECs the responsibility to contact the LNPA-WG if it wanted to seek alternative interpretation to stop Qwest’s proposed changes. Though the CLECs do not agree with Qwest’s interpretations or position, the current CMP process allows Qwest to implement changes, such as this proposed flow, even if every CLEC objects, which is the case.   Because CLEC’s concerns about the impact to the customer, to CLECs systems and processes, and to the industry are so great, the CLECs went to 1) the LNPA-WG to propose changes to the LNP Flow so that it is consistent with the industry flow; and 2) NANC and asked for their review of Qwest’s proposed cancelation flow. 

CLECs ask that Qwest postpone or withdraw the implementation of this request and all related requests so that the LNPA and NANC can 1) review the process flow,  2) ensure that the flow, which was developed in 1997, accurately reflects an industry that has evolved over time, and 3) meets the needs of all involved, especially the customer.  The LNP Flow has been available to Qwest for over 12 years and Qwest has not opted to implement its interpretation of an optional process until now.   Accordingly, based on Qwest’s assertions that there is no pressing reason for the change, there should be no impact to Qwest to forestall the implementation until the above noted requests are completed.        

· The harm that the CLEC will suffer if the proposed change is not postponed, including the business impact on the CLEC if the proposed change is not postponed;

If the changes are not postponed:  As CLECs have communicated repeatedly to Qwest, the harm to the customer is the primary concern.  Despite Qwest’s assertions to the contrary, interruptions in service are more likely, causing confusion and misunderstandings.  There are also a variety of legal issues, such as what constitutes proper authority, compliance with Truth-in-Billing rules/regulations, CPNI privacy laws, 3rd Party Interference with a Contract, etc, which disputes will result in excessive costs, delays, and variant results to CLECs. CLEC’s internal processes have not been reviewed, much less updated, to accommodate Qwest’s proposed process, nor do CLECs have enough information or clarity of Qwest’s proposed process to determine the changes that are required for implementation. This is because Qwest’s proposed process does not reflect the flow or address all aspects of the impact of canceling a pending port. Qwest refuses to acknowledge that the port for many CLECs is the final step of larger process that may include equipment and other services.

If the changes are postponed:  There should be no negative impacts on the CLECs or customers.  Current processes will continue as they have for the last 12 years.

· Whether and how the CLEC alleges that the proposed change violates its interconnection agreement(s) or any applicable commission rules or any applicable law.

Applicable commission rules or applicable laws:  As noted above, there are a variety of legal issues which have yet to be netted.  Just as Qwest is imposing its interpretation of the flow on CLECs, likewise, Qwest is imposing its legal position regarding interpretation of the law, rules and regulations on CLECs.  Consequently, Qwest has not been willing to acknowledge that any legal issues will be impacted, much less attempt to resolve these legal issues prior to implementation of their proposed process. CLECs disagree with Qwest’s interpretations and positions so far.  CLECs feel that the proposed process will result in noncompliance or create ambiguity as to what is compliant with state and federal Truth-In-Billing regulations and rules, the CPNI privacy laws, laws regarding 3rd Party Interference with a contract, the Red Flag Rules, etc.  

Also, regarding applicable laws and orders, there are still legal questions – and difference of interpretation from Qwest – as to:  what  constitutes proper authority in Qwest’s proposed process; when and under what circumstances can a LEC contact a customer; who is responsible for what documentation in this proposed process; and when Qwest takes control over CLEC’s LSR, who is accountable for the negative impacts, such a interruption of service, misunderstandings of financial obligations; cost and cancellation of related orders; and derogatory statements or acknowledgement of Qwest involvement in the process.   Some of the answers may be settled by extrapolating language in ICAs or existing rules and orders.  However, until the proposed process is detailed, the responsibilities and accountabilities are clearly identified, it is not clear how these will be addressed or what other legal issues may arise. 

Violation of the Interconnection Agreement:  Qwest repeatedly claims that, based on its interpretation of the ICA, it does not violate the Interconnection Agreements (“ICA”).  However, at least one CLEC finds that Qwest has violated several sections of the ICA’s via the CMP process, yet the excessive costs, delays, and variant results issued by the different state entities, makes disputing or challenging Qwest’s actions an untenable solution in many cases.   Nonetheless, CLECs do find that this Qwest’s proposed process does violate our ICAs.

Qwest proposed process is a violation of ICAs based on: 

· The description and use of the LOA/POA as defined in the ICA.

· The Disclaimer of Agency language

· The CMP process via the Referenced Document language and the Cooperation language of the ICA.  (See brief discussion below.)

· The LNP process outlined in the ICA, specifically, Qwest will comply with “the FCC’s rules and regulations and the guidelines of the FCC’s North American Numbering Council’s (NANC) Local Number Portability Administration (LNPA) Working Group and the Industry Numbering Committee (INC) of the Alliance for Telecommunications Industry Solutions (ATIS).”  (emphasis added)

· Applicable Intervals, such as 48 hours for cancellation.

Implementing a change that is contrary to industry practices without first approaching those changes through the proper governing authority is a violation of the CMP process, and thus a violation of the ICA (i.e., Qwest agrees it will comply with the CMP process in the ICAs).  Further, the intent of the CMP process was to be collaborative and provide protection from one party unilaterally imposing changes on the other party. Based on Qwest’s implementation date of April 10, 2009 when it will force their proposed process over the objections of all CLECs, their actions are inconsistent with the intent of the process.  Based on some recent commission decisions (i.e., AZ and MN), some state commissions would find Qwest’s actions to be a violation of the ICA as well.

Per the ICA noted above, CLECs, Qwest and the LNPA-WG should review FCC porting order that the flow is based on to ensure any cancelation flow accurately reflects the order.  As noted above, inconsistencies do constitute a violation of the ICAs. 

